

Also reference SOP011, SOP013, SOP015, SOP041, SOP060 and SOP064

TMF and eTMF Process Guidance Document

Table of Contents

1. Introduction	2
1.1. Glossary of Terms	2
1.2. Selecting the correct Index	3
1.3. Selecting the correct TMF format	3
1.4. Electronic folders on the N: drive	4
2. Setting up a paper TMF for a RPH sponsored study (Sponsor and Site file/s)	5
2.1. Tailoring the index	5
2.2. Signposting in the index	6
2.3. Adding a new section	6
2.4. Final index	6
2.5. Saving the index	7
2.6. Adjusting the back-up electronic folders to match the approved index	7
2.7. New versions of indexes	7
2.8. Superseding an index	8
3. Setting up a paper TMF for a Non-RPH sponsored study (Site file only)	8
4. Setting-up an eTMF for an RPH sponsored study (Sponsor and Site file)	9
4.1. Tailoring the index	9
4.2. Signposting in the index	10
4.3. Adding a new section	10
4.4. Final index	10
4.5. Saving the index	11
4.6. Adjusting the eTMF folders to match the approved index	11
4.7. New versions of indexes	11
4.8. Superseding an index	12
4.9. Accompanying eTMF paper folder	12
5. Setting-up an eTMF for a Non-RPH sponsored study (Site file only)	12
6. Scanning of documents for an eTMF	13
7. TMF Index Check	14
7.1. What is a TMF Index Check?	14
7.2. Can I do the TMF Index Check?	14
7.3. What do I need to do?	14
7.4. Saving the index after TMF Index Check	15
8. Archiving of a TMF and eTMF	15
Appendix 1: FILING GOOD PRACTICE	16
Appendix 2: Step-by-step eTMF scanner scanning process	17



1. Introduction

A Trial Master File (TMF) is a collection of essential documents that tell the story of your study, documented proof that it was conducted well and allow the conduct of the trial to be reconstructed. TMF is used as an umbrella term including both the Sponsor File, held by the Sponsor organisation and the Site File/s held by the Investigator/Site (one Site File for each participating site).

The TMF (the Sponsor File and Site File/s) are used by Sponsors and Investigators/Sites for the management of a study. The files are also used by Monitors, Auditors and Inspectors to review and verify whether the Sponsor and the Investigator/Site have conducted the study in line with the applicable regulatory requirements and the principles and standards of Good Clinical Practice (GCP).

In clinical research, essential documents are defined as documents which individually and collectively permit evaluation of the conduct of a trial and the quality of the data produced. GCP guidelines list a number of essential documents, but it is always expected that a TMF will contain more than just this list, as appropriate to the study and at the discretion of the study team.

The Sponsor File is held by the Sponsor organisation and the Site File/s (also sometimes referred to as the Investigator Site File) is held by the Investigator/Site. This is to segregate some documents that are generated and/or held by the Sponsor only, from those that are generated and/or held by the Investigator/Site only (e.g., master randomisation list filed in the Sponsor File only and subject identification code list filed in the Site File only).

The Sponsor File and Site File/s will be established at the beginning of the study. For a Royal Papworth sponsored study, both a Sponsor and a Site File for each participating site will be set up (unless RPH is the only site then these files can be combined). For a non-Royal Papworth sponsored study, only a Site File will be set up as the external Sponsor is responsible for maintaining their Sponsor File.

1.1. Glossary of Terms

CTIMP – for the purposes of this document means a clinical trial involving an investigational medicinal product where regulatory approval from the MHRA is required.

Device – for the purposes of this document means a clinical investigation of a non-CE/UKCA marked device or other device study, where regulatory approval from the MHRA is required.

Non-CTIMP – for the purposes of this document means a trial/study not involving an investigational drug or a non-CE/UKCA marked device, where no approval from MHRA is required (for example an Observational Study).



1.2. Selecting the correct Index

It is good practice for a TMF to follow a standardised index indicating the essential documents that must be included. This gives a clear, <u>standardised</u> structure for the Sponsor and Site File/s as well as guidance on what should be filed in each section. At RPH we have four indexes listed below.

- Sponsor File Index (FRM021)
- Site File Index (FRM068)
- Accompanying eTMF paper folder Index (FRM073)
- Pharmacy File Index (FRM070)

1.3. Selecting the correct TMF format

The TMF can be created as a paper TMF or as an electronic TMF (eTMF), the decision will depend on the type of study being conducted.

Paper TMF

All CTIMP and Device (non-CE/UKCA marked) studies must have a paper TMF. All essential documents must be printed and filed as paper. Electronic folders will be available on the N: drive but must only be used as a back-up and to organise documents for printing. They are <u>not</u> considered part of the TMF and cannot be referred to as an eTMF.

 Paper TMF
 Sponsor File
 +
 Site File/s

 (Paper file + back-up electronic folders)
 (Paper file + back-up electronic folders)

eTMF

Non-CTIMP studies will have an electronic TMF (eTMF), unless the external Sponsor objects. All essential documents will be kept in the electronic folders created in the N: drive. An *'accompanying eTMF paper folder'* will also be set up to complement the eTMF, as some documents will always need to be filed as paper (e.g., wet ink signed consent forms, wet ink signed contracts).

eTMF = Sponsor File + Site File/s (Electronic folders + accompanying eTMF paper folder) (Electronic folders + accompanying eTMF paper folder)

Trial Type	TME format	Index Form Reference							
па туре	I MF format	Sponsor	Site	Accompanying eTMF paper folder					
CTIMP	Paper	pFRM021	pFRM068	N/A					
Device	Paper	pFRM021	pFRM068	N/A					
Non-CTIMP	Electronic	eFRM021	eFRM068	pFRM073					

Quick TMF Format and Index reference table

Pharmacy is responsible for setting up their own paper file for CTIMP trials using the FRM070 index. This will not be mentioned any further in this guidance.

GD019: TMF and eTMF Process Guidance Document Version 2.0 Review date February 2028



1.4. Electronic folders on the N: drive

Regardless of whether a paper or electronic TMF is being set up, an electronic folder structure for the study will be established automatically on the N: drive by the Governance team. The TMF will be identified by the R&D code (POXXXX/CRFXXXX) and a brief study title.

P0XXXX Folder on the N:drive (R&D PROJECTS)



Governance Folder

There will always be a 'Governance' folder. This will be used for document storage by the Governance team only and **should not be accessed by the study team**. Please note that the Governance team will have filed any pertinent documents/emails in the Sponsor and Site File/s when the set-up is complete, and they hand over the study.

Sponsor File and Site File (Back-up electronic folders or eTMF)

These two folders will be built in the same way whether a paper TMF or an eTMF is being set up, but their use will differ.

If the study requires a paper TMF, the electronic folders will be used only as a backup and should continue to be referred to as the '*back-up electronic folders*' (they should not be referred to as an eTMF).

If the study allows the use of an eTMF, these folders will serve as that eTMF and will be used as the repository to store all essential trial documents. In this case the electronic folders can be referred to as the eTMF.

Refer to Section 1.3 to check which TMF format your study will require.

Working Documents

For each TMF format, a Working Documents electronic folder will also be set up. However, they do not form part of the back-up electronic folders for the paper TMF and they do not form part of the eTMF.

The purpose of this folder is to serve as the day-to-day 'go to' folder for the study. The study team has full control over how this is set-up and what sub-folders are created and used. Essential documents will be drafted here and final Word copies of essential documents (i.e., that are filed as PDF in the Sponsor or Site File) will be saved here in case of the need to make amendments or corrections and re-version at a later date.

2. Setting up a paper TMF for a RPH sponsored study (Sponsor and Site file/s)

Trial Type	TME format	Index Form	Reference
па туре		Sponsor	Site
CTIMP	Paper	pFRM021	pFRM068
Device	Paper	pFRM021	pFRM068

Quick TMF Format and Index reference table

For a single site RPH Sponsored trial the Sponsor and Site files can be combined to avoid duplication.

2.1. <u>Tailoring the index</u>

The indexes should be reviewed by the study team when the TMF is set up so that they are tailored to the study. A tailored TMF means less need for multiple File Notes to explain empty sections that are not applicable to a study.

For both the Sponsor File and the Site File/s, open the electronic copy of the index. Use the 'Set-up' column to agree as a team which sections and documents are applicable to the study (refer to the example Site Index FRM068 shown below). If a section is applicable tick/check the 'Yes' box and if it is not applicable tick/check the 'N/A' box and add a comment to the 'Comments' field to explain why it is not applicable.

Do not delete any Section Numbers from the index.



NB: It is only expected that a very small handful of sections or documents will be marked N/A.

When making this decision it is important to think about whether the section or document will be needed throughout the lifetime of the study rather than just at the set-up stage (e.g., the publications section may not be applicable at the time of study set-up but may be needed during study close-out and reporting). Sections or documents that are definitely not applicable for a study will usually be very obvious (e.g., a Health Economics Analysis Plan will not be needed for a study with no health economics outcomes in the protocol).



2.2. Signposting in the index

The paper TMF may also rely on some electronic systems to facilitate trial management. Please note that these systems are different to the electronic folders used as back-up.

Any essential documents that will be stored in other electronic systems instead of directly in the paper TMF should be signposted by adding a comment to the 'Comments' field of the index. This will avoid the need to copy and duplicate documents between the systems and the paper TMF and will enable monitors and other staff to locate important trial-related documentation. For example:

- IQM for SOPS.
- R&D Samples logs (until the end of study, when the final log would be moved into the Site File).
- eForms in a database for recording file notes and protocol non-compliances (until EOT when these should be printed and field in the Sponsor/Site File as appropriate).

2.3. Adding a new section

If you need a section that is not already included in the index this must be discussed and approved by one of the eTMF project leads. Once approved the new section number and title can be added to the index as directed by the eTMF lead.

2.4. Final index

Once the index is agreed and finalized, the CI or delegate will approve the index by adding their name, Study Version Number and date of approval in the <u>header</u>. See diagram below.

Name:	Study Version Number and Date of approval:
Site File Index	NHS
Title of Study (abbreviated):	Royal Papworth Hospital
Royal Papworth Ref (POXXXX):	

The 'Study Version Number' is the index version number specific to the study, and this may change during the study if modifications are made. For example, the first index created will be V 1.0 and will become V2.0 if any changes are made during the life of the study.

Remember the <u>footer</u> states the index <u>template</u> version number, which will never change during the study and will not start from V1.0.

See below the Footer on the Site File Index and the version number available in March 2025:





2.5. Saving the index

The final indexes will be saved electronically in both Excel and PDF format and must be stored in Section 1.0 Sponsor (or Site) File Structure and QC in the back-up electronic folders of the N: drive.

The PDF version captures the 'Day 1' agreed TMF set-up as a reference and the Excel copy is available to amend if necessary, during the life of the study.

Approved indexes should then be printed and filed in Section 1.0 of the paper TMF.

2.6. Adjusting the back-up electronic folders to match the approved index

For the sections that have been marked as N/A in the index set-up column, go to the corresponding back-up electronic folder and add 'NOT IN USE' to the folder name. Do not remove or re-number backup electronic folders as they must match the index section numbering.



deleted.

If new sections were added to the index as described in Section 2.3, the back-up electronic folders can also be updated to match the modified index.

2.7. New versions of indexes

When a new version of an index is released, an email will be sent to the TMF committee members, study teams will be notified at the next scheduled BUZZ meeting. The study teams should review the 'Version History' tab in the new version of the index to see if there are any new sections/ sub-folders that would be of benefit to organise the study documents.

To add new section/sub-folder from a newly released version of the index (issued on IQM) follow the steps outlined below.

- a. Open the saved excel file of your current in-use study index.
- b. Save a new copy of the index for editing.
- c. Insert a new row in the appropriate location and complete the section number and title.
- d. Insert 'Y' in the Set-up column and copy and paste the new guidance information.
- e. Add a comment that this section has been added from a new version of the index: Version X.0, dated XX/XX/XXXX. See example screenshot below.
- The edited index should then be saved with a new Study Version Number (in the header) for f. immediate use in the study, following the same method described previously in Section 2.4. Remember: the template number in the footer must not be changed.
- g. Add a new paper divider in the physical paper TMF for the new section and update the back-up electronic folders in the N: drive so it matches the new approved index.



		Se	Set-up Check		eck		
		Y	N/A	Y	N	Guidance on folder and sub-folder contents	Comments (include signposting to documents stored in other systems outside the pTMF/eTMF)
8.6	Superseded Documents					Superseded versions of any documents pertaining to the Finance/Insurance/Indemnity of the study. Sub-	
						folders can be added for organisational purposes.	
8.7	Insert new section here	Y				Copy guidance notes from the newly approved index	Section added from new version of index Version XX, dated XX/XXX/XXXX
9.0	Grants					Folder 9.1 can be duplicated if there is more than	
5.0	or units					one grant.	

2.8. <u>Superseding an index</u>

Score through the superseded version of the paper index, add your initials and date as per GCP. Transfer the superseded index into the superseded documents section. Please note you may need to create this sub-section yourself.

In the back-up electronic folders on the N: drive, move the superseded index (Excel and PDF files) to the superseded section.

Start using the new version of the index.

3. Setting-up a paper TMF for a Non-RPH sponsored study (Site file only)

For studies that are not sponsored by RPH, the external Sponsor may provide their own Site File and Index for the RPH team to use. In this case, the review of the indexes as described above may not be applicable.

The back-up electronic folders on the N: drive will still be available for you to use. You are free to edit these folders to match the Non-RPH Sponsor index if you wish. You do not need to seek approval from the TMF Leads to makes these changes.

4. Setting-up an eTMF for an RPH sponsored study (Sponsor and Site file)

Trial Type	TME format	Index Form Reference						
па туре		Sponsor	Site	Accompanying eTMF paper folder				
Non-CTIMP	electronic	eFRM021	eFRM068	pFRM073				

Quick TMF Format and Index reference table

4.1. <u>Tailoring the index</u>

The indexes should be reviewed by the study team when the eTMF is set up so that they are tailored to the study. A tailored eTMF means less need for multiple File Notes to explain empty sections that are not applicable to a study.

For both the Sponsor File and the Site File/s, open the electronic copy of the index. Use the 'Set-up' column to agree as a team which sections and documents are applicable to the study (refer to the example Site Index FRM068 shown below). If a section is applicable tick/check the 'Yes' box and if it is not applicable tick/check the 'N/A' box and add a comment to the 'Comments' field to explain why it is not applicable.



Do not delete any Section Numbers from the index.

NB: It is only expected that a very small handful of sections or documents will be marked N/A.

When making this decision it is important to think about whether the section or document will be needed throughout the lifetime of the study rather than just at the set-up stage (e.g., the publications section may not be applicable at the time of study set-up but may be needed during study close-out and reporting). Sections or documents that are definitely not applicable for a study will usually be very obvious (e.g., a Health Economics Analysis Plan will not be needed for a study with no health economics outcomes in the protocol).



4.2. Signposting in the index

Electronic systems may be used to facilitate trial management. Please note that these systems are different than the electronic folders used the eTMF.

Any essential documents that will be stored in other electronic systems instead of directly in the eTMF should be signposted by adding a comment to the 'Comments' field of the index. This will avoid the need to duplicate documents between the systems and the eTMF and will enable monitors and other staff to locate important trial-related documentation. For example:

- IQM for SOPS, CVs and GCP Certificates.
- eForms in a database for recording file notes and protocol non-compliances.

Remember you may also need to add a comment to signpost the reader to paper documents held in the Accompanying eTMF paper folder. For example:

- Wet ink signed informed consent forms
- Wet ink signed contracts

4.3. Adding a new section

If you need a section that is not already included in the index this must be discussed and approved by one of the eTMF project leads. Once approved the new section number and title can be added to the index as directed by the eTMF lead.

4.4. Final index

Once the index is agreed and finalized, the Chief Investigator or delegate will approve the index by adding their name, Study Version Number and date of approval in the <u>header</u>. See diagram below.

Name:	Study Version Number and Date of approval:
Site File Index	NHS
	Royal Papworth Hospital
Title of Study (abbreviated):	NHS Foundation Trust
Royal Papworth Ref (P0XXXX):	

The 'Study Version Number' is the index version number specific to the study, and this may change during the study if modifications are made. For example, the first index created will be V 1.0 and will become V2.0 if any changes are made during the life of the study.

Remember the <u>footer</u> states the index <u>template</u> version number, which will never change during the study and will not start from V1.0.

See below the Footer on the Site File Index and the version number available in March 2025:





4.5. Saving the index

The final indexes will be saved electronically in both Excel and PDF format and must be stored in <u>Section 1.0 Sponsor (or Site) File Structure and QC</u>.

The PDF version captures the 'Day 1' agreed TMF set-up as a reference and the Excel copy is available to amend if necessary, during the life of the study.

4.6. Adjusting the eTMF folders to match the approved index

For the sections that have been marked as N/A in the index set-up column, go to the corresponding electronic folder and add 'NOT IN USE' to the folder name. Do not remove or re-number electronic folders as they must match the index section numbering.



Sub-folders in sections '*NOT IN USE*' can be deleted.

If new sections were added to the index as described in Section 4.3, the electronic folders can also be updated to match the modified index.

4.7. <u>New versions of indexes</u>

When a new version of an index is released, an email will be sent to the TMF committee members and study teams will be notified at the next scheduled BUZZ meeting. The study teams should review the 'Summary of Changes' tab in the new version of the index to see if there are any new sections/sub-folders that would be of benefit to organise the study documents.

To add new sections/sub-folders from a newly released version of the index (issued on IQM) follow the steps outlined below.

- a. Open the saved excel file of your current in-use study index.
- b. Save a new copy of the index for editing.
- c. Insert a new row in the appropriate location and complete the section number and title.
- d. Insert 'Y' in the Set-up column and copy and paste the guidance information.
- e. Add a comment that this section has been added from a new version of the index: Version X.0, dated XX/XX/XXXX. See example screenshot below.
- f. The edited index should then be saved with a new Study Version Number (in the header) for immediate use in the study, following the same method described previously in Section 4.4. Remember: The template number in the footer must not be changed.
- g. Update the eTMF folder structure so that it matches the new agreed index.



		Set	Set-up		Set-up Check		eck		
		Y	N/A	Y	N	Guidance on folder and sub-folder contents	Comments (include signposting to documents stored in other systems outside the pTMF/eTMF)		
8.6	Superseded Documents					Superseded versions of any documents pertaining to the Finance/Insurance/Indemnity of the study. Sub- folders can be added for organisational purposes.			
8.7	Insert new section here	Y				Copy guidance notes from the newly approved index	Section added from new version of index Version XX, dated XX/XXX/XXXX		
9.0	Grans					Folder 9.1 can be duplicated if there is more than one grant.			

4.8. <u>Superseding an index</u>

In the eTMF structure of the N: drive, put the superseded index (Excel and PDF files) in the superseded section. No deletion and re-numbering of electronic folders is required.

4.9. Accompanying eTMF paper folder

Only a limited number of documents are expected to be filed in this folder which serves as an accompaniment to the eTMF, hence the name '<u>Accompanying eTMF paper folder'</u>.

- Accompanying eTMF paper folder Index (FRM073)
- Signed Protocol Signature page (for all approved versions/amendments)
- Signed Contracts (title page and signature page only)
- Study Delegation Log
- Study Training Log
- Screening/Enrolment Log (if maintained as a paper log)
- Signed Informed Consent Forms.

5. <u>Setting-up an eTMF for a Non-RPH sponsored study (Site file only)</u>

For a non-CTIMP study with an external Sponsor it may be possible to use the RPH eTMF folder structure to organize study documentation. Send the external Sponsor the formal 'eTMF Invitation letter' (TPL054). If the external Sponsor agrees to use the RPH eTMF structure, follow the steps outlined in Section 4.0 of these guidelines to set up the eTMF.

If the sponsor provides their own electronic folder structure to create the study eTMF follow the guidelines provided by the external sponsor.

If the external Sponsor declines the use of an eTMF, you may be required to set up a paper TMF. In this case follow the guidance provided by the external sponsor. If no guidance is provided follow the steps outlined in Section 2.0.

<u>NB:</u> If the external Sponsor sends RPH any Sponsor-level essential documents these should not be filed in the Site File, they can either be discarded or filed for information and reference purposes only, in the Working Documents Folder.



6. Scanning of documents for an eTMF

Any document with a wet ink signature (other than those listed above in Section 4.9 which are to be filed as paper), must be scanned using the validated eTMF scanner.

Scanning using the eTMF scanner ensures that the scanned copy is a true representation of the original document (known as a certified copy).

Although this list is not exhaustive here are some examples of documents that could be scanned:

- Completed paper CRFs
- Paper SAE Forms
- Paper File notes
- Paper Protocol Deviation Forms (FRM038)

The process for scanning completed paper CRFs and the timing of destruction/shredding of the originals will be agreed on a per study, case-by-case basis. The decision will be documented on the study decision log.

NB: A SCANNING PROFILE WILL NEED TO BE SET UP ON THE SCANNER BEFORE YOU CAN START. Please contact Isa Hajee (Isa.hajee@nhs.net) or Beth Haines (beth.haines@nhs.net) who will set this up for you.

See details and screenshots in Appendix 2 for the scanning process.



7. <u>TMF Index Check</u>

7.1. What is a TMF Index Check?

This is the process of checking that all the sections ticked as present on the index have been correctly set-up for the paper TMF or eTMF (as appropriate) and contain the correct documents.

Regardless of whether it is a RPH, a Non-RPH sponsored study, a paper TMF or an eTMF, it is expected that the TMF Index Check will be performed a minimum of three times during the lifetime of a study: prior to gaining Sponsor Green Light, during the study and at close-out. It is also advisable to perform a TMF Index Check before the first monitoring visit for a study.

7.2. Can I do the TMF Index Check?

YES! It can be completed by any member of the study team.

7.3. <u>What do I need to do?</u>

The indexes FRM021, FRM068 and FRM073 are dual purpose and will be also used to document the TMF Index Check. Use the agreed/modified version of the indexes for the study and use the 'Check' columns to indicate whether expected documents are filed or not.



Once completed, the team member performing the TMF Index Check will add their name and the date to the <u>footer</u> of the appropriate index and select one of the options to indicate the time in study the check was performed i.e. Prior to Sponsor Green Light/ During the Study or at Close-out.

See diagram below of footer of site file index.





You will need to use a new copy of the index to complete each TMF Index Check.

7.4. Saving the index after TMF Index Check

Save each completed TMF index Check as shown below.

If Peter Smith (PS) completed the TMF Index Check prior to Sponsor Green Light (SGL) on 29th November 2024, for study P03500 the index will be saved as:

2024-11-29 P03500 Site_File_Index_V1.0 Check_Prior SGL_PS

Further examples for saving index checks:

2025-08-03 P03500 Site_File_Index_V1.0 Check_During study_PS

2026-02-25 P03500 Site_File_Index_V2.0 Check_Close-out_PS

For further guidance on naming documents for saving see Appendix 1- Good Document Filing.

Remember to print the completed TMF Index Check for filing in a paper TMF.

8. <u>Archiving of a TMF and eTMF</u>

When an eTMF study is ready to be archived, all the electronic folders must be moved from the R&D PROJECTS area to the R&D PROJECTS ARCHIVE by an authorised member of staff (eTMF lead/QA).

The paper TMF and paper documents included in the accompanying eTMF paper folder must be archived following the process for paper archiving (see SOP011 Archiving of Research Studies).



Appendix 1: FILING GOOD PRACTICE

- Documents must be filed in the electronic folders in PDF format so they cannot be edited. Word versions of all documents will be maintained in the Working Documents folder in case of the need to make amendments or corrections and re-version at a later date (e.g., file meeting minutes as PDF in the Sponsor and/or Site File but keep a Word copy in Working Documents so that they can be updated/corrected at a later date if needed and filed in the Sponsor or Site File next to the original version, clearly indicating that these are a corrected version).
- Documents will be saved using the following naming convention. For the paper TMF, the documents must be filed in reverse chronological order by date of event (newest document at the top).

YYYY_MM_DD_P0 number_Document description_Version number (Eg. 2016_07_27_P01910_Protocol_Version 14.0)

• Emails containing pertinent study decisions or information that is important to document the 'story' of the study will be saved in a PDF format using the following naming convention (i.e., with the word 'email' included after the date). For the paper TMF, the documents must be filed in reverse chronological order by date of event (newest document at the top).

YYYY_MM_DD_Email_P0 number_Document description

• Saved emails that have attachments will be grouped into sub-folders within the appropriate Correspondence folder. Attachments will be saved with the same name as the parent email chain plus 'attachment 1 of X' at the end:

YYYY_MM_DD_Email_P0 number_Document description_Attachment 1 of X

If you are unsure where to file a document, refer to the guidance notes in the applicable index and/or ask a TMF Committee representative (each R&D team has a TMF Champion).

Do not forget that a paper TMF must have all documents printed and filed as paper. Electronic folders in the N: drive will only be used as a back-up and to organise documents for printing.

When replacing a document with a new version, move the superseded document to the **superseded sub-folder** in that section of the file.

All documents should be anonymised <u>before</u> filing. This will reduce the workload and time spent reviewing and anonymising documents at the time of archiving. Documents with unavoidable patient identifiable data should be saved to EDMC (previously called EMR), rather than in the TMF (e.g., GP Summaries as part of AE follow-up).



Appendix 2: Step-by-step eTMF scanner scanning process

Preparation

- The eTMF scanner (Fujitsu Fi-7140) is located at Royal Papworth Hospital (HLRI) on the ACE2 desk.
- The scanner is on a desk that belongs to the ACE team, meaning that other teams are not allowed to book this desk in advance. The ACE team are happy to swap desks on the day, so book your own desk in advance as usual and arrange to swap desks on the day. Please message the ACE team member in advance to arrange the swap.
- In order to scan documents to the eTMF for a given study, that study must have a 'scanning profile' set-up on the scanner software (PaperStream Capture).
- Please do not attempt to set-up a scanning profile yourself, email Isa Hajee (Isa.hajee@nhs.net) or Beth Haines (beth.haines@nhs.net) and they will to do this for you.
- A Scanning Log (in Excel format), will automatically be created each time you scan a document and this log is saved alongside your scanned document in your chosen destination folder (i.e., there will be a Scanning Log in every folder to which documents are scanned). Do not delete this document. The Scanning Log is a record of the successful scanning of your master document.
- If you scan more than one document to the same destination folder, an entry will automatically be made in the same Scanning Log (even if documents are scanned at a later date).

Scanning Process

- Once you have confirmation from Isa or Beth that your Scanning profile is set up you can begin scanning. If this is your first time using the scanner and you would like support, please contact Beth Haines who will be happy to help.
- Log-in to the desktop computer that is connected to the eTMF scanner with your <u>own log-in</u> <u>details (this is to allow detection of who scanned each document for the scanning log). If you need help setting up the PC cables, please go to Page 24 for help.
 </u>
- 3. Push the power button on the eTMF scanner, once on it will be green.
- 4. Double click on the <u>PaperStream Capture</u> icon from the desktop.





- 5. From the menu drop-down select 'Configure Profiles'.
- 6. Find your 'Scanning Profile' and hover over the icon. Select the 'pencil' icon to 'Edit'.



- You will see a list of 6 options on the left side of the screen. Select the 3rd option, the 'Destination' folder.
- 8. In the 'Folder field' copy and paste the file path to the eTMF location where you want to save the scanned document/s.



9. The 'File' field is where you add the name of the document being scanned. Alternatively, a file name of "<EDITSTR>" will prompt the user to input a new file name each time a batch is scanned



which can be useful when scanning multiple documents of the same type but different study subjects. The <EDITSTR> will remember the previously used name, so remember to edit the file name after each document if using this method otherwise you may encounter an error that the file already exists.

10. To add <EDITSTR> click 'Name Rule' at the end of the File row, scroll down to 'Optional character string' and select. This will add <EDITSTR> to the File filed. See screen shots below.

PaperStream Capture									3 ×
PaperStream Capture		Configu Profile	s					A Notificati	on Help
. Name Beth's test profile 27-01-25	Destination						1		
Source 'aperStream IP fi-7140 01 : B&W Default	Folder	Network Folder	SP SharePoint St	arePoint Online	FTP Other App.	E-mail	Printer S	Settings	
Destination	Do not link to in	me for the file wh	en it is output						^
4. Meta Data ^{0 field(s)}	1st	PDF PDF File (*.pdf)	Compression Folder	Follow software	e-deter	st scanning		Name Rule	
5. Separation Document Separator (None) 6. Test		<	File e.g. The specified naming rule i The path leng Review the d destination for	<editstr> S:Ishared\R&D\e I naming rule may as n the Destination tab gth for the output dest occument profile file no older path, and the wo</editstr>	TMF\Scanning\Beth test so sign the same name for mu and try again. tination or the work file nan ame in the Destination tab, rk folder path in the Paper	anning\EDITSTR.p Itiple files to be rele ne may exceed 200 the index informati Stream Capture Ad	df assed. Check the bytes. on file name, the outpr ministrator Tool.	Name Rule Cou Profile Name Batch Name User Name Station Name	nter
	✓ Output index	k information	Index File e.g.	scanning_log scanning_log.csv One file per doct File Format CSV	ument O One file per t	Document Counter Page Counter Sheet Counter Environment Value Release Date Release Time Detailed file output of	date and tim		
		P	revious	Overwrite if a file	Save	Close		Document Separato Multi-image Output Output Side	r Value Number
							_		



11. In the Index File box type 'scanning log' as the name, and make sure the file format shows 'CSV' and 'Comma' as shown below. The one file per document option will record each page in a document that was scanned in the scanning log, whereas the one file per batch option will only update the scanning log with one entry per document. Make sure the 'Overwrite if file exists' box is **UNCHECKED**

	PDF	Compression	Follow software-deter	Options			Nama Bula	
ist U	PDF File (*.pdf)	Folder	5:(snared)R&D(e1MF)Se	canning\beth tes	st scanning		Name Rule	
		File	<editstr></editstr>				Name Rule	Counter
		e.g.	S:\shared\R&D\eTMF\Scar	nning\Beth test so	anning\EDITSTR.pdf			
✓ Output index	information	naming rule in The path lengt Review the do destination fold	the Destination tab and try ag h for the output destination or current profile file name in the der path, and the work folder p scanning_log	iain. the work file nam Destination tab, path in the Paper	e may exceed 200 byte the index information fil Stream Capture Adminis	s. e name, the output trator Tool.	Name Rule	Select Data
		e.g.	scanning_log.esv					
			One file per document	One file per b	patch			
-			File Format CSV • Co	mma •	Output in UTF-8	>		
			Overwrite if a file exists					
	Pre	vious	Next	Save	Close			

12. Then click 'save' followed by 'close', shown below.

	SP	()	P				
Folder Network	older SharePoint S	SharePoint Online FT	P Other App.	E-mail	Printer	Settings	
Specify a name for the	e file when it is output						
Do not link to imprinter	-						
	Compressio	n Follow software-de	eter - Option	5			
	Folder	S:\shared\R&D\eT	MF\Scanning\Beth t	est scanning		Name Rule	
	File	<editstr></editstr>				Name Rule	Counter
	e.g.	S:\shared\R&D\eTM	F\Scanning\Beth test	scanning\EDITSTR.	odf		
	e.g. (1) The specifie naming rule (1) The path ler Review the destination	S:\shared\R&D\eTM ed naming rule may assign in the Destination tab an higth for the output destina document profile file nam folder path, and the work	IF\Scanning\Beth test : n the same name for n d try again. stion or the work file na e in the Destination ta folder path in the Pape	scanning\EDITSTR.j nultiple files to be rel ame may exceed 200 b, the index informat erStream Capture Ac	odf eased. Check the) bytes. ion file name, the c Iministrator Tool.	output	
☑ Output index informat	e.g. The specifie naming rule The path ler Review the destination f	S:Ishared/R&D/eTM ed naming rule may assign in the Destination tab an right for the output destina document profile file nam folder path, and the work to scanning_log	(F\Scanning\Beth test i n the same name for n d try again. stion or the work file na e in the Destination ta folder path in the Pape	scanning\EDITSTR. hultiple files to be rel ame may exceed 200 b, the index informat erStream Capture Ac	odf eased. Check the) bytes. ion file name, the c Iministrator Tool.	Name Rule	Select Data
☑ Output index informat	e.g. The specific ming rule The path ler Review the destination t Index File e.g.	S:\shared/R&D\eTM kd naming rule may assig in the Destination tab am right for the output destina document profile file nam folder path, and the work : scanning_log scanning_log.csv	FIScanning/Beth test i n the same name for n d try again. tion or the work file na e in the Destination ta folder path in the Pape ent One file per	scanning\EDITSTR.µ nultiple files to be rel mme may exceed 200 b, the index informat erStream Capture Ac	odf eased. Check the) bytes. ion file name, the c Iministrator Tool.	Name Rule	Select Data
✓ Output index informat	e.g. (7) The specifie naming rule (7) The path Iner (7) The path I	S:Ishared/RADIeTM d naming rule may assign in the Destination tab an angth for the output destina focument profile file nam older path, and the work: scanning_log scanning_log.csv One file per docume File Format CSV	FIScanning/Beth test i n the same name for n d try again. tion or the work file na in the Destination ta folder path in the Pape ent One file per Comma	scanning\EDITSTR.; hultiple files to be rel ame may exceed 200 b, the index informat erStream Capture Ac r batch Output in U	odf eased. Check the) bytes. ion file name, the c Iministrator Tool.	Name Rule	Select Data
☑ Output index informat	e.g. (7) The specifie naming rule (7) The path line (7) The path lin	S:Ishared/RADIeTM d naming rule may assign in the Destination tab ann ghi for the output destina document profile file nam scanning_log scanning_log.csv O One file per docum File Format CSV	FIScanning/Beth test In the same name for n d try again, tion or the work file na e in the Destination ta folder path in the Papu ent One file per Comma kists	scanning\EDITSTR, nultiple files to be rel ame may exceed 2000 b, the index informat rStream Capture Ac rbatch • Output in U	df eased. Check the) bytes. Iministrator Tool.	Name Rule	Select Dat



13. Use the 'back' button to exit the 'Configure Profiles' area and return to the 'Scan' home page.



- 14. Navigate to: S:\R&D\PaperLight_Scanning folder and make a copy of the 'scanning_log_template(comma_seperated)' file. Paste the file into the destination folder where your scans will be saved. Change the name of the file to 'scanning log' (to match the Index file name shown in point 10. above). This file contains the column headers for the scanning log so that it is easier to interpret the data once you start scanning.
- 15. You are now ready to start scanning. Make sure the scanner is turned on; the power button should be green. Place the document to be scanned on the feeder of the scanner (face down).
- 16. Click on the scanning profile for the study (document will immediately be fed through the machine and scanned).
- 17. Use the left-hand viewing pane to review all pages of the document to confirm they are all present (including blank pages) and verify the scan is a true copy of the original. Pages can be rearranged (drag and drop) and rotated (right click) as required. After reviewing the scanned pages select 'Complete Batch'.



🖶 PaperStream Capture					
PaperStream ≡•	Scan	Batch Manager			
Scan Edit Con Con Con Con Con Con Con Con Con Con	ndo Browse Zoom Out	Coom In Fit Whole Magn	ifier Marquee Filter Off	Others	Navigation 4 / 4 < > >>
0001	nail	Pages in doc4	1.1		
	😓 Edit File Name	r oger in eller i		?	×
	Folder Path File Name Editable	S:\shared\R&D\eTMf Type file name here Options	F\Scanning\Beth test scanni	ing Brow	rse
1 2	Optiona	al character string	Type file name here		>
	Docum	ent Counter	1 0		
	Page C	Counter	1		
	Sheet 0	Counter	1		1
3 4					
				OK Car	icel •
			eens fra	F and eTMF Process (Latiness Disarrays) - Andre Stat 1 - 2017	Page 21 of 22

18. You will then be prompted to name the file, before selecting OK.

19. Checks

- Navigate to the folder of the eTMF that you intended to send/save the document to and check that it is there and opens successfully.
- The Scanning Log (Excel file), will **follow the scanned document** and appear in the destination folder to which the document has been scanned.
- Open the Scanning Log and check that the document that has been scanned is shown at the bottom of the log (there will be a line for <u>each page</u>, including blank pages).
- It is vital that you <u>close Excel</u> after looking at the Scanning Log, as keeping it open will prevent subsequent scans from being recorded in the log.

20. General Scanning Guidance

- <u>Blank pages of documents to be scanned must be marked</u> with a diagonal line across them this is so that the scanner detects the blank pages and they are easy to review and count.
- If you are scanning a batch of similar documents with the same name except one variable (e.g., CRFs for a number of different patients in the same trial), use the <EDITSTR> tool for saving scanned documents described in point 9&10. If you need help, ask Isa or Beth how to do this as it will save you a lot of time!

21. Scanner/Desktop Troubleshooting



• The scanner can only be used from the desktop, make sure the network cable from the ThinkPad hub is plugged into the front of the Dell PC box and not to a laptop.



• Make sure all the monitor cables are plugged into the ThinkPad Hub and not the Dell PC box itself.



• Make sure that the Dell PC box, hub, and scanner are all turned on. The light for the desktop PC is very dim so you may need to double check it if you are not sure.